
 

  
 

TECHNICAL ADVISORY COMMITTEE (TAC) REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 

Thursday, September 16, 2021 - 9:00 a.m. 

Location: Corpus Christi Regional Transportation Authority (CCRTA) Building 
602 N. Staples Street, Suite 210, Corpus Christi, TX 78401 

1. Call to Order, Roll Call, and Quorum Determination 

2. Public Comments for Items not on the Agenda:   

Opportunity for public comments for any items not on the Agenda and within the TAC’s jurisdiction 
(except in matters related to pending litigation). 

Public Comments may be provided in-person during the meeting or in writing, limited to 1,000 characters, 
by emailing ccmpo@cctxmpo.us or by regular mail or hand-delivery to the Corpus Christi MPO offices at 
602 N. Staples St., Suite 300, Corpus Christi, TX 78401. All Public Comments submitted shall be placed into 
the record of the meeting. 

3. APPROVAL OF THE JUNE 17, 2021 TAC REGULAR MEETING MINUTES    

4. DISCUSSION AND INFORMATION ITEMS 

A. Traffic Crash Data Analysis and Regional Traffic Safety Task Force 
Action: Review, Discuss and Comment  

B. Results of the TAC Member Pair-wise Comparison of 2045 MTP Goals 
Action: Review, Discuss and Comment  

C. Program Guidance and Procedures: Surface Transportation Block Grant Set-Aside (STBG-SA) Funding 
(Category 9) Call-for-Projects   
Action: Review, Discuss and Comment 

D. TxDOT/MPO Safety Task Force (TxDOT link below)  
  https://www.txdot.gov/inside-txdot/media-center/statewide-news/015-2021.html  

5. REGIONAL FREIGHT TOPIC  

A. Infrastructure Investment and Jobs Act (IIJA) New Requirement: State Freight Plan 
https://ftp.txdot.gov/pub/txdot/move-texas-freight/committees/freight/meetings/2021/0824-
presentation.pdf 

6. Member Agency Statements for Items of Community Interest: Upcoming events, holidays, or 
acknowledgements.   

7. Upcoming Meetings: 

A. Transportation Policy Committee:  Regular Meeting:  October 7, 2021 
B. Technical Advisory Committee:  Regular Meeting:  October 21, 2021 
C. Traffic Crash Data Analysis   TEAMS Meeting: TBD, 2021 

8. Adjourn 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 - Indicates attachment(s) for the agenda item. 
  

mailto:ccmpo@cctxmpo.us
https://www.txdot.gov/inside-txdot/media-center/statewide-news/015-2021.html
https://ftp.txdot.gov/pub/txdot/move-texas-freight/committees/freight/meetings/2021/0824-presentation.pdf
https://ftp.txdot.gov/pub/txdot/move-texas-freight/committees/freight/meetings/2021/0824-presentation.pdf


 

 

PUBLIC MEETING NOTIFICATION 

All MPO Committee meetings are public meetings and open to the public subject to the COVID-19 policies of the 
building owner where the meeting is being held. Any persons with disabilities who plan to attend this meeting 
and who may need auxiliary aids or services are requested to contact the MPO at (361) 884-0687 at least 48 
hours in advance so that appropriate arrangements can be made. 

MEETING LOCATION MAP 

 

 



CORPUS CHRISTI METROPOLITAN PLANNING ORGANIZATION (MPO) 
TECHNICAL ADVISORY COMMITTEE (TAC) MEETING MINUTES 

Thursday, June 17, 2021 

1. Call to Order, Roll Call, and Quorum Determination 

Mr. Brian DeLatte called the meeting to order at 9:02 A.M. 

TAC Members Present Virtually:  

       Brian DeLatte, P.E., City of Portland 
       Gordon Robinson, AICP, Corpus Christi Regional Transportation Authority (CCRTA)     

Jeff Pollack, AICP, Port of Corpus Christi Authority 
Paula Sales-Evans, P.E., TxDOT – Corpus Christi District (CRP) 
Dan McGinn, AICP, City of Corpus Christi 
Howard Gillespie, San Patricio County 

MPO Staff Present: Robert MacDonald, P.E.; Craig Casper, AICP; Victor Mendieta; and Yoshiko Boulan 

2. Public Comments for Items not on the Agenda 

None were offered. 

3. APPROVAL OF THE MAY 20, 2021 TAC REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 

Mr. Gillespie made a motion to approve the May 20, 2021, TAC Meeting Minutes. Ms. Sales-Evans seconded; 
the motion passed unanimously.   

4. DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION 

A. Corpus Christi MPO FY 2021-2024 Transportation Improvement Program (TIP) Amendment #3 

Mr. MacDonald requested that the TAC to review, discuss and recommend the proposed Corpus Christi 
MPO FY 2021-2024 TIP Amendment #3 to the Transportation Policy Committee (TPC).  The primary 
purpose of this amendment is for clarifications of the Grouped Project Definition and Performance 
Measures (PM) 1, 2, and 3 targets per Federal Highway Administration (FHWA), Federal Transit 
Administration (FTA) and TxDOT guidance.  There have been no changes made since it was presented 
during the May TAC meeting. The Corpus Christi MPO opened the public comment period from May 13, 
2021, until July 1, 2021, and has received no comment as of June 17, 2021.  

Mr. Pollack made a motion to recommend TPC approval of the FY 2021-2024 TIP with Amendment #3. Mr. 
Gillespie seconded; the motion passed unanimously.   

These clarifications and minor technical corrections as well as previously approved Amendments #1 and 
#2 would be incorporated into the Corpus Christi MPO FY 2021-2024 TIP as the first quarterly amendment 
after the TxDOT adopts FY 2021-2024 STIP.   

The Corpus Christi MPO is expecting the possible future amendments of Category 9 (Transportation 
Alternatives Set-Aside Program) and Category 7 (Metro Mobility) and contacting TxDOT Transportation 
Planning and Programming (TPP) Division regarding these funding.   

B. DRAFT Corpus Christi MPO 2021 Public Participation Plan (PPP) 

In the April TAC meeting, the Corpus Christi MPO provided the DRAFT Corpus Christi 2021 Public 
Participation Plan (PPP). The TPC approved the release of the 2021 PPP for 45-days public comment 
period on May 6, 2021, and the Corpus Christi MPO has been soliciting public comment until July 1, 2021.   

There are additional paragraphs on Section V. REVISIONS TO MPO DOCUMENTS AND REPORTS; VI. Annual 
or Bi-annual Reports (page 19) and SECTION VI. ACHIEVING PUBLIC PARTICIPATION PLANNING 
PROGRAMMING ROADMAP (pages 23 – 33). 

After the TAC recommendation and the TPC approval of the 2021 PPP, the Corpus Christi MPO will contact 
State and local partner agencies, community groups, and the general public for their active participation 

Agenda Item 3



in the Corpus Christi MPO’s transportation planning decision-making process.  The Corpus Christi MPO is 
seeking other partner agencies’ support to disseminate the 2021 PPP. 

Mr. Gillespie  made a motion to recommend TPC approval of DRAFT Corpus Christi MPO 2021 PPP. Mr. 
Robinson  seconded; the motion passed unanimously.   

C. DRAFT Corpus Christi MPO 2021 Program for Addressing Discrimination (PAD) 

In the May TAC meeting, the Corpus Christi MPO provided the DRAFT Corpus Christi MPO Program for 
Addressing Discrimination for review, discussion, and comments. As briefed in the May TAC meeting, 
Corpus Christi MPO 2021 PPP and Corpus Christi MPO 2021 PAD are closely linked documents; while the 
2021 PPP describes the strategies, methods and procedures to involve public into the transportation 
decision-making process, the 2021 PAD lays out how the Corpus Christi MPO will serve disadvantaged 
populations such as low-income, racial minorities, and Limited English Proficiency populations to meet 
Title VI, Environmental Justice, LEP, and newly issued Executive Order 13985: Advancing Racial Equity and 
Underserved Communities Through the Federal Government (ARE) as a recipient of federal funds. 

There is no change in the requirements or in the proposed MPO policies and procedures for Title VI, EJ, 
and LEP. However, the 2021 PAD provides much more detailed and specific methods, strategies, and 
procedures to achieve the requirements than the current plan that was adopted in 2018.  Currently, no 
final guidance for the ARE is available; the 2021 PAD may be updated on the Racial Equity section when 
the final guidance becomes available. 

Mr. DeLatte inquired how the Corpus Christi MPO would reach out to the public including the 
underserved population.  Mr. Casper answered that the Corpus Christi MPO utilizes the traditional 
newspaper advertisements, the Corpus Christi MPO website, Social Networks (Facebook, Twitter, 
Instagram, etc.,) and participating in the partner agencies’ meetings and local community meetings and 
events for the public outreach.  Also, the Corpus Christi MPO is currently updating the contact list and 
including more community groups such as housing associations.   

Mr. Robinson offered to check the CCRTA’s contact list. 

Ms. Sales-Evans inquired if the Corpus Christi MPO would translate all publications such as plans, public 
notices in Spanish.  Mr. Casper answered that the current percentage of LEP population in the Corpus 
Christi MPO boundary is under the threshold that is required for the translation service.  However, the 
Corpus Christi MPO is seeking the partnership or cooperation with the local partner agencies and 
contacting Spanish media.  

Mr. Gillespie made a motion to recommend TPC approval of DRAFT Corpus Christi MPO 2021 PAD. Mr. 
Pollack seconded; the motion passed unanimously.   

5. INFORMATION ONLY ITEM 

A. TAC Member Updates to their FY 2021-2024 TIP Projects in Tables 13a and 13b 

No update provided. 

6. REGIONAL FREIGHT TOPIC 

A.   2045 Metropolitan Transportation Plan (MTP) Freight Chapter Review and Discussion 

Mr. MacDonald provided the 2045 MTP Chapter 9 Freight Planning and explained that the Corpus Christi 
MPO’s intention to routinely review and discuss freight projects for 2050 MTP, specifically projects by the 
Port of Corpus Christi and the Corpus Christi International Airport, State Freight Plan and Freight Network 
and so forth and requested to provide the information by the end of Calendar year 2021. 

Mr. Pollack suggested incorporating the infrastructure improvements with technology, at minimum 
strategically addressing CV (Connected Vehicles)/AV (Autonomous Vehicles), into the Freight Chapter.  

Mr. Casper agreed, and mentioned the full-size, self-driving trucks are on the road between Houston and 
Dallas and eventually into Oklahoma. 

Mr. Pollack briefly explained the current Port of Corpus Christi’s projects:  

Agenda Item 3



• The Ship Channel dredging project is fully designed in phases, the 1st phase is done, the 2nd phase is 
fully funded, but the 3rd phase is only partially funded.  The Port expected that this project would be 
included in the last Presidential Budget, but it was not.  This project has been delayed and it costs the 
Port quadrupled the project cost. This project is critical not only to the Port of Corpus Christi but also 
the Coastal Bend region, and the Port is seeking federal support.  

• The Port has applied for Infrastructure for Rebuilding America (INFRA) grants for Avery Point 
Redevelopment, Rebuilding American Infrastructure with Sustainability and Equity (RAISE) grant for 
Rail Safety Improvements and System Efficiencies improvement project.   

• The Port is evolving to the renewable energy and clean fuel hub.  The Port had a Memorandum of 
Understanding with Ares Management to build a progressive and responsible infrastructure by adding 
hydrogen facilities and a solar infrastructure.  Also, the Port is committing to reduce carbon footprint 
by utilizing proactive technology called “carbon capture.” 

• The Port has applied for FY 2021 Port Security Grant Program and other than usual security vehicles 
and equipment, Port-wide “Digital Twin” System was added as one of the projects. This “Digital Twin” 
GIS-based model infrastructure project is less than $1 million, and it has the asset management 
aspect with various technologies for smart infrastructure.  This project could be a precursor for the 
mobility management and smart communities for this region as a test case.  If the grant is awarded 
for this project, the Port will provide the quarterly updates. 

7. Member Agency Statements for Items of Community Interest: Upcoming events, holidays, or 
acknowledgements 

Ms. Sales-Evans reported the TxDOT’s ADA Transition Plan that looked at the Rights-of-Way and inventoried 
needed curbed ramps, sidewalks, and other facilities.  She suggested discussing how the cost and work of 
these ADA improvement can be incorporated into our transportation projects with the close attention to 
federal requirements such as TITLE VI and EJ for prioritization.  Category 9 and Category 7 are suggested as 
potential sources for these projects due to their relatively flexible funding category definitions. 

Ms. Sales-Evans also requested to discuss the TAC’s role to achieve the safety targets.  Mr. Casper stated that 
the Corpus Christi MPO has been in the process of the on-call crash analysis with a consultant.  It is necessary 
to work with the regional safety committee or the network group with law enforcement once the necessary 
data is collected.  Ms. Sales-Evans pointed out that the safety education as well as infrastructure treatments 
are needed to reduce the crash rate.  Mr. MacDonald assured that the TAC members’ active participation in 
the safety discussion. 

Ms. Sales-Evans inquired about the status of City of Corpus Christi’s Transportation Alternative Set-Aside 
(TASA) projects.  There are three TASA projects the City of Corpus Christi was awarded: (1) Region-wide Bike 
Boulevard Wayfinding Initiative, (2) Schanen Ditch Hike and Bike Trail, and (3) Dr. Hector P. Garcia Hike and 
Bike Trail.  The Region-wide Bike Boulevard Wayfinding Initiative project might lapse due to the expiration 
date of Advance Funding Agreement (AFA) and it is necessary to review and determine if the City of Corpus 
Christi still pursue these projects or not.  Mr. McGinn answered that he would look into these projects with 
other departments and get back to the TAC. 

Mr. MacDonald stated that the Corpus Christi MPO is planning to start the Call for Projects for TASA projects 
in July or August, and it could be several million dollars. 

8. Upcoming Meetings: 

A. Transportation Policy Committee:  Regular Meeting:  July 1, 2021 
B. Technical Advisory Committee:  Regular Meeting:  July 15, 2021 

9. Adjourn 

The meeting adjourned at 10:00 A.M. 

Agenda Item 3



Agenda Item 4A 

 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

Date:  September 9, 2021 

To:  Technical Advisory Committee (TAC) 

From:  Craig Casper, Senior Transportation Planner 

Subject: Item 4A: Traffic Crash Data Analysis and Regional Traffic Safety Task Force 

Action: Review, Discuss and Comment 
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

Summary 

In order to track crash and safety performance as part of our efforts related to the required Safety 
Performance Measure 1 (PM 1) and to identify possible cost effective interventions, the Corpus Christi 
MPO has sought assistance in analyzing crashes in the region. This effort identified the Vision Zero Suite 
software from the company DiExSys. DiExSys is a road safety analytics company focused on integrating 
statistical modeling and quantitative risk analysis with highway and traffic engineering, transportation 
planning, economic analysis, geographic information systems and information technology. We are 
planning a separate TEAMS presentation of this application to involve TAC and our regional partners. 

The Corpus Christi MPO staff is proposing the creation a Regional Traffic Safety Taskforce as an ad hoc 
committee created by the Transportation Policy Committee (TPC) with input from TAC and regional 
partners to investigate the current efforts being implemented in the region regarding traffic safety.  The 
use of the traffic crash data analysis tool as well as research into current traffic safety programs and 
projects will be the focus of the proposed Taskforce and lead to updates to the MPO’s Safety 
Performance Measure 1 (PM 1). We encourage the TAC members to review the current program and 
present those ideas during this discussion at the TAC meeting. This ideas will be incorporated into the 
Taskforce direction presented to the TPC for their consideration.  

Future TEAMS Workshop 

In a future TEAMS workshop, we are proposing to have the consultant team leader, Rich Sarchet, PE,  
give a detailed presentation on the capabilities of the software and how it can be deployed.  The 
presentation is for TAC members, TxDOT-CRP and TPP and Safety staff, local governments and law 
enforcement as well as others involved with the safety projects and programs in the region.   

DiExSys’ Vision Zero Suite uses predictive analytics and diagnostic pattern recognition to determine 
what is a “normal” crash pattern and what is an “abnormal” crash pattern, for each intersection and 
roadway type, based on statewide data. This software has been successfully deployed by 4 countries, at 
least 8 state DOT’s, along with numerous cities, counties and regional planning entities. The Corpus 
Christi MPO plans to use this Vision Zero Suite as part of our efforts to address PM 1. 

Rich is a Senior Transportation Safety Engineer on the DiExSys team. Prior to joining the company, Rich 
gained over 20 years of transportation engineering experience at Colorado DOT, with 15 of those years 
focused on safety and traffic operations. He has conducted detailed evaluation of hundreds of 
intersections, interchanges, freeways and arterial segments, and identified thousands of opportunities 
for crash reduction and optimization of traffic operations. 



Agenda Item 4B 

 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

Date:  September 9, 2021 

To:  Technical Advisory Committee (TAC) 

From:  Craig Casper, Senior Transportation Planner 

Subject: Item 4B: Results of the TAC Member Pair-wise Comparison of 2045 MTP Goals 

Action: Review, Discuss and Comment 
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

Summary 

Corpus Christi MPO staff distributed a link to a Survey Monkey exercise on September 9th for the TAC to 
complete prior to the September 16th Regular Meeting.   The link to the survey is below: 

https://www.surveymonkey.com/r/CorpusChristiMPO-STBG 

The survey contains the scoring categories that are used to evaluate which STBG-SA/TASA projects are 
to be funded with CAT 9 funds and since these criteria are not of equal importance, the pair-wise 
comparison is essential first step in the STBG-SA/TASA Project selection process. TAC Agenda Item 4C 
provides the information on the Call-for-Projects for the STBG-SA/CAT 9 Program.  A key step in the 
multi-criteria analysis is determining both which criteria are more important than the others and how 
much more or less important these criteria are.  

TAC members were asked to participate in a pair-wise comparison of the adopted goals from the 2045 
MTP. This comparison produces an ordinal ranking of the criteria, from most to least important. The 
results of this exercise will be provided at the TAC meeting. Our plan is to have TPC members and other 
partner agencies, key stakeholders and the public also complete the pair-wise comparison. This effort 
will provide the broadest input into the setting of priorities of criteria for STBG-SA/TASA project 
selection. 

The next step in the process is ranking the criteria. Ranking will determine how much more or less 
important each criterian is compared to all of the other criterion. Participants will be asked to allocate a 
total of a 100 points among the scoring criteria. As an example of weighting, a criterion that is weighted 
20 points is twice as important as one weighted 10 points and 5 times more important than one 
weighted 4 points. We will provide additional guidance as we move into that phase of this process.  

After the weight of each criteria is determined, that criteria is then scored by the Corpus Christi MPO 
staff. The scorers will use the same 0-5 scoring structure for every category. The approved weights will 
be combined with the 0-5 score that each project will receive in each category to determine the final 
STBG-SA weighted score. This will produce a chart of weighted importance to inform the decision 
process for the STBG-SA/TASA Project selection.  

 

 

https://www.surveymonkey.com/r/CorpusChristiMPO-STBG


Agenda Item 4C 

 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

Date:  September 9, 2021 

To:  Technical Advisory Committee (TAC) 

From:  Craig Casper, SeniorTransportation Planning 

Subject: Item 4C: Program Guidance and Procedures: Surface Transportation Block Grant 
Set-Aside (STBG-SA) Funding (Category 9) Call-For-Projects 

Action: Review, Discuss and Comment 
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

Summary 

The federal STBG-SA program corresponds to the TxDOT Category 9 funding program. This funding 
allows all projects and activities that were previously eligible under the Transportation Alternatives 
Program, encompassing a variety of smaller-scale transportation projects such as pedestrian and bicycle 
facilities, recreational trails, safe routes to school projects, community improvements such as historic 
preservation and vegetation management, and environmental mitigation related to stormwater and 
habitat maintenance.  

The Corpus Christi MPO is preparing a Call-For-Projects for Category 9 funds. Attachment 1 describes the 
process, goals, and criteria that will be used by the Corpus Christi MPO to evaluate and select projects 
for Corpus Christi MPO’s allocation of approximately $4,500,000 in federal funds for fiscal years 2022 
through 2025.  The federal funds require a 20-percent cash match. In-kind match is generally not 
allowed.  

Many infrastructure projects can cost more than funding that is available in one year. Due to the 
administrative burden of federal projects and the management costs for project sponsors from multiple 
projects, there is a trend that STBG-SA projects and programs allow projects to combine funding for 
several years, rather than being limited to only one single year.  

The current schedule has the formal call issued November 4, 2021. The completed applications are 
scheduled to be due no later than January 17, 2022. Final approval is scheduled to occur in April 7, 2022. 
Eligible applicants for these funds include:   

1. Local governments; 
2. Regional transportation authorities; 
3. Transit agencies; 
4. Natural resource or public land agencies, including Federal agencies; 
5. School districts, local education agencies, or schools;  
6. Tribal governments; 
7. Any nonprofit entity responsible for the administration of local transportation safety 

programs; 
8. Any other local or regional governmental entity with responsibility for oversight of 

transportation or recreational trails (other than a metropolitan planning organization or a 
State agency) that the State determines to be eligible, consistent with the goals of 
subsection (c) of section 213 of Title 23. 



Agenda Item 4C 

We plan to reach out to those eligible entities to make them aware of the process.  

There are 11 general project categories eligible for funding in this Call:   

1. Bicycle and Pedestrian Facilities 
2. Bicycle and Pedestrian Education (grades K‐8 only) 
3. Conversion of Abandoned Railway Corridors to Trails 
4. Construction of Turnouts, Overlooks, and Viewing Areas 
5. Outdoor Advertising Management 
6. Historic Preservation and Rehab of Historic Transportation Facilities  
7. Vegetation Management 
8. Archaeological Activities 
9. Stormwater Management 
10. Wildlife Mitigation 
11. Safe Routes to School 

We are requesting the TAC members review the attached program document and come to the TAC 
meeting to discuss refinements to the proposed Call-For-Projects process. 

Attachment 

DRAFT CORPUS CHRISTI MPO CATEGORY 9 PROGRAM GUIDANCE AND PROCEDURES: SURFACE 
TRANSPORTATION BLOCK GRANT SET-ASIDE (CATEGORY 9) PROGRAM  



 

CORPUS CHRISTI MPO CATEGORY 9 

PROGRAM GUIDANCE AND PROCEDURES:  

SURFACE TRANSPORTATION BLOCK GRANT 
SET‐ASIDE (CATEGORY 9) PROGRAM  

September 2021  

Background:  

 

The FAST Act eliminated the MAP-21 Transportation Alternatives Program (TAP) and replaced it with the 

Surface Transportation Block Grant set-aside (STBG-SA) funding program (Category 9). The performance-

based competitive selection process used to award the funds in Metropolitan Areas should be consistent 

with the adopted Metropolitan Transportation Plan (MTP). The STBG-SA program allows all projects and 

activities that were previously eligible under TAP, encompassing a variety of smaller-scale transportation 

projects such as pedestrian and bicycle facilities, recreational trails, safe routes to school projects, 

community improvements such as historic preservation and vegetation management, and environmental 

mitigation related to stormwater and habitat maintenance.  

The Corpus Christi MPO Transportation Policy Committee (TPC) is the designated forum for municipalities, 

counties, transit agencies, tribal governments, state and private agencies to address regional 

transportation issues in the Corpus Christi Metropolitan Area. The Corpus Christi Metropolitan Planning 

Organization (Corpus Christi MPO) encompasses portions of Nueces and San Patricio counties as 

illustrated in Exhibit 1. The Corpus Christi MPO is comprised of committees and participating organizations 

that collaborate and create partnerships to address the region's complex transportation needs. The 

Corpus Christi MPO’s original members (City of Corpus Christi, City of Portland, Nueces County, San 

Patricio County, and the Texas Department of Transportation – Corpus Christi District) became the Corpus 

Christi MPO’s initial member agencies in 1973. To develop a more multi-modal transportation planning 

process, the Corpus Christi MPO now includes the Corpus Christi Regional Transportation Authority and 

the Port of Corpus Christi Authority.  

 

This document will describe the goals and criteria used by the Corpus Christi MPO to evaluate and select 

projects for Corpus Christi MPO’s allocation of approximately $4,500,000 in Category 9 funding for federal 

fiscal years 2022 through 2025.   

 

Eligible Applicants  

 

The FAST Act carries forward the eligible sponsors for the Set Aside from MAP‐21 TAP eligibility and 

added “nonprofit entities responsible for the administration of local transportation safety programs” as 

eligible sponsors. Nonprofit organizations (other than the one new addition described below), State 

DOTs, and MPOs/RPOs are not eligible project sponsors; however, they are encouraged to work with 

eligible sponsors to advance projects where there is a shared interest. Eligible Category 9 (STBG-SA) 

project sponsors include:   



 

Corpus Christi MPO Category 9 Call for Projects Page 2 

1. Local governments; 

2. Regional transportation authorities; 

3. Transit agencies; 

4. Natural resource or public land agencies, including Federal agencies; 

5. School districts, local education agencies, or schools;  

6. Tribal governments; 

7. A nonprofit entity responsible for the administration of local transportation safety programs; 

8. Any other local or regional governmental entity with responsibility for oversight of 

transportation or recreational trails (other than a metropolitan planning organization or a State 

agency) that the State determines to be eligible, consistent with the goals of subsection (c) of 

section 213 of title 23. 

 

Exhibit 1. Map of the Corpus Christi Metropolitan Planning Area 

 

 

It is incumbent upon each project sponsor to read TxDOT’s Local Government Project guidance 

https://ftp.txdot.gov/pub/txdot/lgp/procedures/guide.pdf and become familiar with the contracting and 

reporting procedures associated with Category 9 (STBG-SA). Applying for federal funds is a significant 

undertaking, which must be led by the project sponsor from start to finish. Projects that have not 

navigated the federal requirements and been advertised for construction within 1 year of their 

programmed year may be subject to forfeiture of awarded funds and project cancellation (i.e. a project 

programmed for FY 2022 was not yet advertised at the end of FY 2023).  

 

 

 

 

https://ftp.txdot.gov/pub/txdot/lgp/procedures/guide.pdf


 

Corpus Christi MPO Category 9 Call for Projects Page 3 

 

Project Selection Schedule   
 

The table below illustrates the Category 9 process timeline.  

 

Category 9 Process Timeline for 2022‐2025 Funds 

September 16, 2021 Program Guidance Review by TAC 

October 7, 2021 Program Guidance Review by TPC 

October 21, 2021 TAC Recommend Approal of Category 9 Program 

November 4, 2021 TPC Approve Category 9 Program: Issue Call for Projects 

January 17, 2022 Project Applications Due 

February 3, 2022 Project Scoring Status Update TPC 

Feburyary 17, 2022 TAC Review and Comment Draft Project Scores 

March 17, 2022 TAC Review and Recommend Project Scores and Propossed List of 

Funded Projects 

April 7, 2022 TPC Review and Approve Scores, Rnking, and Funded Projects 

 

Funding and Eligible Activities  

 

Available Funding  

The FAST Act, which has provided funding in Category 9 since December 2015, expired September 30, 

2020; but was extended until September 30, 2021, with a continuing resolution. While it is possible that 

the FAST Act will be re‐extended, it is more likely that a new bill will be enacted and there is no absolute 

assurance that the STBG Set‐Aside which funds Category 9 will continue or that this type of funding will 

be available through the Year 2025. Funds made available through the federal bill prior to that date 

would still be available for use after September 30, 2021; however, new funds designated after this date, 
including this round of Funding, may not be. The funding breakdown below describes how the funding 

is currently allocated to the Corpus Christi MPO region; again, subject to change beyond September 30, 

2021.  The maximum a project can receive in Category 9 funds is $2,000,000. The minimum project 

award is $50,000 for non‐infrastructure projects and $200,000 for infrastructure construction projects. 

 

Funding Estimates 

Carry over 2022 2023 2024 2025 Total 

$2,300,000 $580,000 $580,000 $580,000 $580,000 $4,500,000 

Note: 2022 UTP estimate for CCMPO CAT 9 for FY 2021-2025 and TxDOT-TPP Carryover Estimates 2021. 

Federal requirements state that Category 9 funds must be obligated within two years of the year of 

programming. Failure to obligate the funds results in the loss of the funding. The funds will revert back 

to Corpus Christi MPO for re‐allocation at the regional level.   



 

Corpus Christi MPO Category 9 Call for Projects Page 4 

Category 9 is not a grant program in that no money is provided upfront. Approved costs are reimbursed 

only after an Advanced Funding Agreement (AFA) between TxDOT and the project sponsor is signed and 

a Minute Order is authorized for the project. In order to get an approved Minute Order, the project must 

obtain the following clearances: right-of‐way clearance, utility clearance, railroad clearance, 

environmental (NEPA) clearance, and have an approved Plan, Specification and Estimate (PS&E) 

package. No activities performed prior to obtaining the minute order are reimbursable through the 

awarded funding.  

Eligible Activities   

50% of Category 9 funds are distributed to MPOs with population over 200,000 such as the Corpus Christi 

MPO, which are designated as Transportation Management Areas (TMAs) by TxDOT. TMAs are Census 

Designated Urban Areas with a population over 200,000. The other 50% of Category 9 funds are 

designated for statewide use. TMA MPOs will select projects in consultation with TxDOT districts, while 

small urban areas (with populations below 200,000) and rural areas, the funds are administered by 

TxDOT’s Public Transportation Division (PTN). For projects selected by the Corpus Christi MPO, the local 

project sponsor is responsible for completing all pre‐construction activities (design, environmental 

clearance, right‐of‐way and utility relocation/coordination) with local funds.  Category 9 funds can then 

be used to reimburse project sponsors for 80% of the costs that were paid by the local entity, up to the 

awarded amount. Construction inspection and construction management activities associated with 

approved projects are eligible uses of Category 9 funds. Any costs exceeding the amount of funds 

awarded through the Category 9 process are the responsibility of the project sponsor. Please consult 

the TxDOT Local Government Project Toolkit for a detailed description of the requirements and 

procedures to utilize federal transportation funding.   

 

Project Eligibility  

 

The list below describes the 11 general project categories eligible for funding through the application 

process.   

 

1. Bicycle and Pedestrian Facilities 

Bicycle and pedestrian projects allow communities to make non‐motorized transportation safe, 

convenient, and appealing. Projects may include on‐road and off‐road trail facilities that serve to meet 

the transportation needs of pedestrians, bicyclists, and users of other non‐motorized forms of 

transportation. These active transportation projects encourage healthful physical activity, keep the air 

clean by decreasing reliance on fossil fuels, and enrich local economies with recreational assets. 

Eligible Projects: 

• New or reconstructed sidewalks or walkways 

• Pedestrian and bicycle signs or signals 

• Lighting that primarily benefits cyclists and pedestrians (Lighting Plan Requirements) 

• Transportation projects that achieve ADA compliance, such as curb ramps 

• New or reconstructed off‐road trails that serve a transportation need, such as trails that provide 

connections to schools, parks, or other public places 

• Crosswalks, bicycle lanes or shared lane pavement markings 

https://www.txdot.gov/government/processes-procedures/lgp-toolkit.html


 

Corpus Christi MPO Category 9 Call for Projects Page 5 

• Widening or paving shoulders 

• Bicycle parking facilities, such as bicycle lockers and bicycle racks (including those on buses) 

• Shared use paths, side paths, and trails that serve a transportation purpose 

• Bicycle and pedestrian bridges and underpasses 

• Crossing improvements that shorten crossing distance, provide access, and/or primarily 

improve bicycle and pedestrian safety 

• Traffic realignments, road diets, or intersection changes that improve bicycle and pedestrian 

access or safety   

• Rails with trails projects, which are adjacent to active (not abandoned) lines   

  

2. Bicycle and Pedestrian Education (grades K‐8 only)   
  

Non‐infrastructure projects that educate or encourage children in kindergarten through the eighth 

grade to safely walk or bike to school are defined as eligible in Section 1404(f)(2)(A) of SAFETEA‐LU.   

  

Eligible Projects:   

• Public awareness campaigns and outreach to press and community leaders   

• Traffic education and enforcement in the vicinity of schools   

• Student sessions on bicycle and pedestrian safety, health, and environment   

• Funding for training, volunteers, and managers of safe routes to school programs   

  

3. Conversion of Abandoned Railway Corridors to Trails   
  

Rail‐trails help to expand travel and recreational opportunities within communities. Converted rail 

corridors make ideal trails because of their flat grade, long length, and intact right‐of‐way. Rail‐trails, as 

these types of trails are called, help to encourage physical activity and reduce air pollution.  An example 

of this would be the Texas-Mexican Railway Company trestle crossing Oso Bay.  

  

STBG-SA funds can be used only for abandoned, rail banked or currently inactive rail lines; funds cannot 

be used to move or perform construction on active rail corridors. Funding for this category may also be 

used solely for purchase of railroad right‐of‐way or property, as long as future development of a public 

facility is planned.   

  

Eligible Projects:   

• Construction of multi‐use trails within a railroad right‐of‐way   

• Major reconstructions of multi‐use trails within a railroad right‐of‐way   

• Developing rail‐with‐trail projects, where there is an adjacent line that is no longer active    

• Purchasing and converting unused railroad property for reuse as a trail   

  

4. Construction of Turnouts, Overlooks, and Viewing Areas   
  

By developing turnouts, overlooks, and viewing areas, communities can enhance the travel experience 

and supply an educational element that attracts tourists to local roads that are of scenic, historic, 

natural, cultural, archeological, and recreational significance.  STBG-Set‐Aside funds cannot be used for 

the construction of visitor or welcome centers, or the staffing, operating, and maintenance associated 

those facilities. Marketing or promotion of such facilities is also ineligible.   

  



 

Corpus Christi MPO Category 9 Call for Projects Page 6 

None of the 19 designated scenic routes are in the Corpus Christi MPO area. The closest is US 77 from 

Robstown (Highway 44) to Harlingen (Highway 186). Other eligible locations include designated Heritage 

Areas by the Texas Historical Commission (such as Fort Lipantitlan), Wildlife Management Areas by the 

Wildlife Division of Texas Parks and Wildlife (such as Redhead Pond), as well as those areas that are 

listed on the National Register of Historic Places (such as the 1914 Nueces County Courthouse) and 

National Park Service sites (such as the Padre Island National Seashore).   

  

Eligible Projects:  

• Construction of turnouts, overlooks, and viewing areas   

• Interpretive signage or kiosks explaining site significance   

• Right‐of‐way acquisition for such facilities may be considered   

  

5. Outdoor Advertising Management   
  

The control and removal of outdoor advertising activity allows communities to preserve the scenic 

character of their roads by tracking and removing illegal and non‐conforming billboards. Nonconforming 

signs are those signs that were lawfully erected but do not now comply with the Highway Beautification 

Act of 1965.   

  

Eligible Projects:  

• Billboard inventories, including those done with GIS/GPS   

• Removal of illegal and non‐conforming billboards   

  

6. Historic Preservation and Rehab of Historic Transportation Facilities 

  
The Historic Preservation and Rehabilitation of Historic Transportation Facilities category allows 

communities to rehabilitate and restore transportation facilities of historic significance. These 

rehabilitated facilities serve to educate the public and to provide communities with a unique sense of 

character that attracts tourists and generates a vibrant economic life.  These funds cannot be used for 

the sole purpose of replicating a historic building, nor can they be used for the operation of historic sites, 

including transportation museums. The staffing, operating, and maintenance associated with such 

facilities is also ineligible.   

  

Eligible projects must rehabilitate, restore or improve interpretation of a historic transportation facility. 

The addition of new items to the facility, such as desks, cabinets, furniture or other amenities that would 

improve building aesthetics or operations, are not eligible. Similarly, improvements that merely enhance 

operations (such as adding heating or cooling systems) are not eligible; however, in some cases, heating 

or cooling systems may be added, but only when deemed necessary for preservation of the historic 

structure; not for the comfort of guests or staff. Historic transportation facilities must be listed or eligible 

for listing on the National Register of Historic Places.   

  

Eligible Projects:  

• Restoration and reuse of historic buildings with strong link to transportation history 

• Restoration and reuse of historic buildings for transportation-related purposes 

• Interpretive displays at historic sites 

• Access improvements to historic sites and buildings 

• Restoration of railroad depots, bus stations, and lighthouses 



 

Corpus Christi MPO Category 9 Call for Projects Page 7 

• Rehabilitation of rail trestles, tunnels, bridges, and canals 

• Increasing building accessibility, in accordance with ADA guidelines 

 

7. Vegetation Management 

Through the Vegetation Management activity, communities improve roadway safety, prevent invasive 

species, and provide erosion control along transportation corridors. An example would be the removal 

of Brazilian Peppertree from rights-of-way throughout the metropolitan area.  

Eligible Projects: 

• Clearing of low‐hanging branches or other vegetation encroaching on a travel corridor 

• Landscaping to improve sightlines or other safety considerations 

• Removal of invasive species 

• Planting grasses or wildflowers to manage erosion along transportation corridors 

 

8. Archaeological Activities 

The Archaeological Activities category allows communities to explore the history in America with 

archaeological excavations and surveys in conjunction with highway construction projects. Only projects 

related to the impacts of implementing a transportation project are eligible for funding under this 

category. 

Eligible Projects: 

• Research, preservation planning, and interpretation 

• Developing interpretive signs, exhibits, and guides 

• Inventories and surveys 

 

9. Stormwater Management 

Stormwater Management projects allow communities to decrease the negative impact of roads on the 

natural environment. Storm runoff over road surfaces carries pollutants into water, upsetting the 

ecological balance of local waterways and degrading water resources for humans and animal 

populations. Additionally, stormwater runoff may also erode soil, potentially reducing structural 

stability, augmenting flood events, and stripping soil from sensitive agricultural areas. Projects funded 

in this category seek to reduce these environmental impacts. An example project would include 

mitigating runoff and flooding related to roads in the Calallen area.  

 

Eligible Projects:  

• Detention and sediment basins 

• Stream channel stabilization 

• Storm drain stenciling and river clean‐ups 

• Water pollution studies 

 

10. Wildlife Mitigation 

Wildlife Mortality Mitigation allows communities to decrease the negative impact of roads on the 

natural environment. Roads can harm wildlife through habitat fragmentation and vehicle‐caused 



 

Corpus Christi MPO Category 9 Call for Projects Page 8 

wildlife mortality.  Example projects would include the Portland Living Shoreline or the Indian Point 

Marsh Area Living Shoreline proposed by the General Land Office.  

Eligible Projects:  

• Wetlands acquisition and restoration 

• Stream channel stabilization 

• Wildlife underpasses or overpasses which may include bridge extensions to provide or improve 

wildlife passage and wildlife habitat connectivity 

• Monitoring and data collection on habitat fragmentation and vehicle‐caused wildlife mortality 

 

11. Safe Routes to School 

Infrastructure Projects — Safe Routes to School (SRTS) projects enable and encourage children, including 

those with disabilities, to walk and bicycle to school. Infrastructure projects must be within two miles of 

a Kindergarten through 8th-grade school and must primarily benefit walking or biking students. Eligible 

infrastructure projects include, but are not limited to, the projects listed below.   

 Eligible Projects:  

• New or improved sidewalks/multi-use paths 

• Traffic calming and speed reduction improvements 

• Pedestrian and bicycle crossing improvements 

• On‐street bicycle facilities 

• Off‐street bicycle and pedestrian facilities 

• Secure bicycle parking facilities 

• Traffic diversion improvements in the vicinity of schools 

 

Ineligible Activities  

 

Per MAP‐21, and continued in the FAST Act, several projects that were eligible under the Transportation  

Enhancements program are no longer eligible. Specifically, formerly eligible projects such as the creation 

and operation of transportation museums, and tourist and welcome centers are no longer eligible.  

While general education programs for bicyclists and pedestrians are also no longer eligible, active 

transportation safety and education programs for students in kindergarten through the eighth grade 

remain eligible. The eligibility of these programs and activities is preserved through provisions in MAP21 

(and subsequently the FAST Act) that extend eligibility for SRTS non‐infrastructure items defined in 

SAFETEA‐LU.   

 

Project Eligibility Determinations  

 

Project sponsors should design projects that clearly fit into the eligible categories defined in this 

document. Corpus Christi MPO staff in consultation with TxDOT-TPP  and FHWA will make the final 

determination on project eligibility and will disallow any project that is not clearly eligible. It is the 

responsibility of the project sponsor to present how the project aligns with the guidelines for eligible 

project activities.  



 

Corpus Christi MPO Category 9 Call for Projects Page 9 

 

• There is no limitation on the number of applications that may be submitted by an eligible entity.  A 

separate resolution of local cash-match commitment from the eligible entity project sponsor (e.g. 

local government/agency) is required for each submitted project.  

• Federal guidance states that projects must be principally for transportation rather than recreation 

and the project must have logical endpoints.  For example, if a project proposes a looped trail within 

a city park is considered recreational and is not eligible. However, the route to that park is eligible.  

• Consistent with other Federal-aid highway programs, Category 9 funds are administered by TxDOT.  

After project selection, a determination will be made as to whether the project will be administered 

by TxDOT or the local entity.  

• The STBG-SA Category 9 Program is not a grant. The funds provided are on a cost-reimbursement 

basis.  Therefore, it is important to understand that the applicant will need adequate cash flow to 

accommodate the payment of 100 percent of the project costs.  Applicants will be reimbursed with 

the Federal portion after the work has been accomplished.  

• The local match must be cash.  A resolution of local cash-match commitment from the eligible entity 

project sponsor (e.g. local government/agency) must be provided with the application.  In certain 

limited circumstances in-kind contributions non-cash donations may be considered but only after 

consultation with FHWA and TxDOT.  Consultation should occur prior to application submission.  

• The eligible entity project sponsor is responsible for any and all cost overruns.  

• The Corpus Christi MPO Transportation Policy Committee (TPC) will approve all final projects and 

funding levels. Itemized budgets submitted for STBG-SA (CAT 9) funding will be reviewed by the 

Federal Highway Administration (FHWA), TxDOT, and the Corpus Christi MPO to ensure work 

activities are eligible and itemized costs are reasonable. Based on available funds, project application 

requests for TAP funds may not be fully funded.  

• Prior to Project Letting:  Applicants must have a fully executed Advanced Funding Agreement (AFA) 

with the TxDOT Corpus Christi District and comply with all applicable state and federal requirements 

related to the development of federal-aid highway projects.  The AFA must be executed within one 

year from the date of selection by the MPO Policy Committee or risk loss of federal funding.  

• Administrative Fee:  TxDOT may impose an administrative fee of up to 15% of the project cost.  The 

fee is an eligible expense covered with awarded funds but for which applicants must account when 

calculating the availability of funds for construction.  

• Selected projects must be included in the Corpus Christi MPO’s Transportation Improvement 

Program and the Statewide Transportation Improvement Program prior to project letting.  

• Commence Construction:  TAP Projects must advance to construction within three years from the date 

of selection by the Corpus Christi MPO TPC or risk loss of federal funding.  

• All on-system projects must follow TxDOT procedures.  

• Regardless of whether the projects are located within the right-of-way of a Federal-aid highway, the 

treatment of projects will require:  project agreements, authorization to proceed prior to incurring 

costs, prevailing wage rates (Davis-Bacon), Buy America, and competitive bidding.  

• Projects should primarily benefit the general public, and not a private entity. 

 

  



 

Corpus Christi MPO Category 9 Call for Projects Page 10 

Application Process  

 
 

Project Applications  

A complete Category 9 project application consists of the following components:  

• Completed Fillable PDF including;Project Cost Breakdown 

• Project Schedule 

• Other Supporting information (maps, drawings, photographs, reports, etc.) 

It should be noted that letters of support from elected officials have no influence on the selection of 

projects in a performance-based programming process. While we encourage that project sponsors 

inform and collaborate with their elected leadership, letters of support are not necessary unless they 

are committing funds (matching or additional, non‐traditional funding) to the project.  

Application Review   

Corpus Christi MPO staff will review pre‐applications submitted by the December 1, 2021 deadline for 

eligibility and notify applicants of any ineligible submittals.  After a review applicants will be notified if 

the applications are incomplete and will be given one week to submit missing or incomplete information.   

Multi-year Funding and Funding Cycles   

Due to the administrative burden of evaluating funding proposals on an annual basis and the 

management costs for project sponsors from multiple projects, there is a trend that STBG-SA projects 

and programs include funding for several years, rather than only one single year. Many infrastructure 

projects can cost more than funding that is available in one year. This has resulted in FHWA and state 

DOTs accommodating multi-year activities.  

 

Categorical Exclusions   

Except in unusual circumstances, FHWA expects that these types of infrastructure projects will fall under 

the categorical exclusion provisions of 23 CFR Sec 771.117 that recognize construction of bicycle and 

pedestrian lanes, paths, and facilities as not involving significant environmental impacts. This streamlines 

compliance with the National Environmental Policy Act (NEPA) requirements. 

 

Project Consistency with Adopted Plans   

Screening criteria addresses provisions of FAST Act and assesses consistency with Corpus Christi MPO’s 

current 2045 Metropolitan Transportation Plan and adopted local plans. Projects must be consistent 

with FAST Act eligibility requirements and local or county plans or they will not be considered further.  

 

  



 

Corpus Christi MPO Category 9 Call for Projects Page 11 

Project Performance Goals  

 

The candidate projects will be evaluated on Performance Goals which evaluate the project's benefits in 

relation to adopted Goals from the Metropolitan Transportation Plan. There are also four Ancillary 

Factors to rate each project on including its readiness and deliverability.  

Corpus Christi MPO staff will evaluate each project based on the identified factors. A composite of all of 

the candidate projects and their ratings will then be presented to the TAC for review and 

recommendation and then to the TPC for final approval.   

A majority of the factors rely heavily on outcome‐driven, performance‐based metrics. The increased 

focus on performance-based planning and programming is a result of FAST Act (2015), which aims to 

create a streamlined and performance‐based surface transportation program and builds on many of the 

highway, transit, bicycle, and pedestrian programs and policies originally established in ISTEA (1991).  

MAP‐21 (2012) created seven national performance goals for federal highway programs. The seven 

national performance goals are:  

• Safety ‐ To achieve a significant reduction in traffic fatalities and serious injuries on all public 

roads. 

• Infrastructure Condition ‐ To maintain the highway infrastructure asset system in a state of 

good repair. 

• Congestion Reduction ‐ To achieve a significant reduction in congestion on the National 

Highway System. 

• System Reliability ‐ To improve the efficiency of the surface transportation system. 

• Freight Movement and Economic Vitality ‐ To improve the national freight network, 

strengthen the ability of rural communities to access national and international trade 

markets, and support regional economic development. 

• Environmental Sustainability ‐ To enhance the performance of the transportation system 

while protecting and enhancing the natural environment. 

• Reduce Project Delivery Delays ‐ Reduce project costs, promote jobs and the economy, and 

expedite the movement of people and goods by accelerating project completion by 

eliminating delays in the project development and delivery process, including reducing 

regulatory burdens and improving agencies' work practices. 

The USDOT has adopted three core Environmental Justice (EJ) and Title VI policies stating that projects 

receiving federal transportation funds must: 

1. Avoid, minimize, or mitigate disproportionately high and adverse human health or environmental 

effects, including social and economic effects, on minority and low-income populations.  

2. Ensure the full and fair participation by all potentially affected communities in the transportation 

decision-making process.  

3. Prevent the denial of reduction in or significant delay in the receipt of benefits by minority and low-

income populations. 

These national goals are reflected in Corpus Christi MPO’s current MTP through the plan performance 

measures, which are ultimately implemented through the TIP.   



 

Corpus Christi MPO Category 9 Call for Projects Page 12 

Competitive Evaluation Criteria  

 

1. Consistency with the current Corpus Christi MPO Metropolitan Transportation Plan 

All applicants must demonstrate consistency with adopted plans, including the 2045 Metropolitan 

Transportation Plan (MTP), other locally adopted plans, and related objectives from relevant 

organizations.   

Adopted 2045 MTP Goals:  

1. Significantly reduce traffic fatalities and serious injuries on all public roads.  

2. Manage regional transportation assets into a state of good repair 

3. Reduce congestion on the regional significant corridors. 

4. Efficiently operate, and invest in, the surface transportation system 

5. Improve regional freight transportation facility performance 

6. Use transportation investments to improve the regional economy. 

7. Protect and enhance communities, the natural environment, and historic and cultural 

resources. 

8. Provide an equitable transportation system for all, regardless of age, ability, race, 

ethnicity, or income. 

 

Projects that are specified in the 2045 MTP will receive 5 points. Projects that are not included, but 

are consistent with the 2045 MTP, will receive 3 points. Projects will receive three additional points 

if they are listed in a local adopted plan. If they are instead consistent with a local adopted 

comprehensive plan, they will receive 2 additional points.  Projects will receive up to one additional 

point if they are included in another agency plan, such as the Coastal Bend Ecological Plan or in a 

school facility improvement plan.  

 

Projects specified in the 2045 MTP 5 points 

Projects consistent with the 2045 MTP 3 points 

Projects listed in a local adopted plan 3 points 

Project consistent with a local adopted plan 2 points 

Projects included in another agency plan 1 point 

 

 

2. Significantly reduce traffic fatalities and serious injuries on all public roads. 

Encouraging the use of nonmotorized modes of transportation is a goal at the intersection of public 

health, environment, and transportation. Projects will be scored as follows, up to a maximum of 9 

points.New infrastructure that is within 2 miles of a school are double points listed below: 

• Construct or reconstruct a separated facility (sidewalk) for pedestrians +1 point.  

• Construct or reconstruct a separated facility (path) for both bicycles and pedestrians +2 

points.  

• Construct enhanced road crossing visibility and signage +2 point  

• Project is a program specifically for K-8 users +5 points 



 

Corpus Christi MPO Category 9 Call for Projects Page 13 

• Construct ramps at street crossings where sidewalks already exist +1 point 

A program specifically for K-8 users 5 points 

Construct/reconstruct a separated facility (path) for pedestrians 2 points 

Construct enhanced road crossing visibility and signage 2 points 

Construct/reconstruct a separate facility (sidewalk) for pedestrians 1 point 

Construct ramps at street crossings where sidewalks already exist 1 point 

 

3. Manage transportation assets into a state of good repair.  

Projects will be scored if they repair connections to public transportation facilities that are not ADA 

compliant or on the length and number of connections repaired.  Generally speaking, one point will 

be awarded for each block (50 yards) repaired or for each non-compliant street crossing that is 

reconstructed.  

 

4. Reduce Congestion on the regional significant corridors. 

The integration of transportation and land use planning is a critical component in developing 

sustainable, attractive communities. To achieve the regional vision, it is important to link local 

activity centers throughout the region with the residential areas in which they serve and support via 

multimodal travel options. Activity centers include areas such as commercial/retail and employment 

centers, as well as civic, institutional and healthcare, educational, and recreational facilities. These 

areas can be in the form of a central business district, or a town center; a municipal building or 

complex; medical or health care facilities; schools, universities, colleges; and state, regional or local 

parks.  

 

Projects in this category will be scored on the level of connectivity between residential areas and 

local activity centers. Projects connecting three or more of the listed activity center types will receive 

a High (3) rating.. Projects not providing any type of access or connectivity to activity centers will 

receive 0 points. 

Project connecting 3+ of the listed activity center types 5 points 

Projects connecting residential areas to 2 of the listed activity center types 3 points 

Projects connecting residential areas to 1 of the listed activity center types 2 point 

No connection 0 point 

 

5. Efficiently operate, and invest in, the surface transportation system.  

Projects that bring significant non‐federal and non‐traditional funding to the TIP warrant additional 

consideration. Projects requesting funding of less than 50% of the total project cost from federal 

funding programs will get a High (5) score for this scoring factor. Projects with a federal share above 

80% will score Not Addressed (0). 



 

Corpus Christi MPO Category 9 Call for Projects Page 14 

In addition, projects that can show a firm, in writing, commitment of non‐traditional funding to the 

project will get 1 additional point. These projects are typically public/private partnerships that 

provide some of the required non‐federal matching funds from private donations, philanthropic 

sources, local businesses, or other non‐government resources. Documentation verifying sources 

and committed amounts must be included with the candidate’s application.  

Project requesting federal funding of less than 50% of the total project cost 4 points 

Projects requesting between 50% to 70% federal funding 3 points 

Projects requesting between 70% to 80% federal funding 2 points 

Projects with a federal funding above 80% 0 points 

Project with a commitment of non-traditional funding +1 point 

 

6. Improve regional freight transportation facility performance.  

Is there a relationship between regional freight and category 9? 

7. Use transportation investments to improve the regional economy.  

Will the project lead to the redevelopment of Brownfields or enhance infill or redevelopment of 

underutilized parcels? Will the facility improve access to a tourism, heritage, wildlife, or recreation 

facility?  

Project provides critical improvement to accessibility 5 points 

Project is necessary for infill development 4 points 

Project will enhance enhance facilities for tourism 4 points 

Project improves utilization of wildlife or heritage areas 3 points 

Project provides nonmotorized access to recreational facility 1 point 

 

8. Protect and enhance communities, the natural environment, and historic and cultural 

resources.  

Mitigating the negative effects of transportation infrastructure on the environment (water, soils, 

vegetation, and wildlife) is an important consideration when developing new or reconstructing 

existing facilities.  Projects in this category will be scored based on the level of environmental 

mitigation being proposed. Will project promote adaptation and resiliency to extreme weather 

events? (High, Medium, Low) Does the project create mitigation or vegetation management sites? 

(High, Medium, Low) Does the project improve the management of stormwater runoff? (High, 

Medium, Low)   

Project is taken from “Protecting Tomorrow: Corpus Christi MPO 

Mitigation Planning Protocol” 

5 points 

Project is taken from the Texas Parks and Wildlife Department 

(TPWD) in their “Texas Conservation Action Plan (TCAP) Gulf Coast 

Prairies and Marshes”.  

5 points 

Project directly supports a project that is in one of the above plans.  4 points 

Project is in a local entities adopted plan related to this criteria. 1 point 

Project is not connected to any plans related to this criteria. 0 point 

 

 



 

Corpus Christi MPO Category 9 Call for Projects Page 15 

9. Provide an equitable transportation system for all, regardless of age, ability, race, 

ethnicity, or income. 

Projects will be scored using the zonal attributes previously identified in the Areas of Disadvantaged 

Populations (ADP) analysis. If a project is majority located in or borders a zone that is: 

 

Project is located in/borders a zone that is well above average 5 points 

Project is located in/borders a zone that is above average 4 points 

Project is located in/borders a zone that is slightly above average 3 points 

Project is located in/borders a zone that is slightly below average 2 points 

Project is located in/borders a zone that is below average 1 point 

Project is located in/borders a zone that is well below average 0 point 

 

10. Connectivity Enhancement 

Projects in this category will be awarded points based on their level of integration with existing 

facilities. The key to establishing an accessible, well-connected network of alternative facilities is 

building off of existing infrastructure and providing connections where there currently are none. A 

continuous, consistent system is safer and more attractive to users. Fragmented and inconsistent 

systems can create conflict points and confusion among users.  

Projects that create new connections to public transportation facilities or connect two or more 

existing facilities will receive a High (5) rating. Public transportation facilities are commuter parking 

lots, transit stops and their connections to the surrounding community.  

Projects create new connections to public transportation facilities 5 points 

Project connect two or more existing public transportation facilities 5 points 

Project extend an existing facility 3 points 

Project constructs a new, independent facility (no connection to existing 

facilities) 

2 points 

 

11. Project Readiness and Deliverability 

The further along a project is on the Project Development path the more committed an entity is to 

its completion and the sooner construction can begin. The phases of project development that may 

be managed or performed by a local government may include: Environmental, Design, Right-of-way 

acquisition, Utility relocation, and Construction. Deliverability is an important aspect of a successful 

Category 9 project. Corpus Christi MPO will utilize assess and rank each of the submitted candidate 

project’s ability to be delivered on‐time and within budget based on project complexity and past 

performance with previous Category 9 projects.   

 

Applicants must clearly demonstrate project readiness with a well‐defined scope, schedule, cost 

estimate, project understanding, commitments of needed non‐federal funding, and documentation 

of support from the other participating agencies in the project. Project sponsors should consult with 

TxDOT Publication 740: Local Project Delivery Manual in order to proactively identify any potential 

deliverability issues the candidate project(s) may experience and factor them into their schedules 

and cost estimates.  Particularly in the case of the right‐of‐way phase, the sponsor should provide 



 

Corpus Christi MPO Category 9 Call for Projects Page 16 

proof of ownership of the right‐of‐way, or proof of coordination with the right‐of‐way owner. Even 

if the ROW is owned by the sponsor a review from a review from TxDOT ROW unit may be required.  

 

Project has no ROW requirements  +2 points 

Project has completed environment review  3 points 

Project has completed preliminary design  2 points 

Project is desired in year 3 or 4 of the TIP and will have completed design 

and environmental review in year 1 or 2.   

1 points 

Project is in the TxDOT 10-year UTP 1 point 

Project involves railroad coordination  0 points 

 



 

Corpus Christi MPO Category 9 Call for Projects Page 17 

TxDOT Project Implementation Process  

 

 

 

1. Project Initiation: This phase of the project includes all the steps between needs identification, 

through programming, up to the execution of the legal agreement (AFA) between the local 

government and TxDOT. The MTP and TIP will identify the needs, objectives, priorities, and specific 

activities that will be performed by each project or program. The product of the project initiation 

phase includes, at a minimum: 

• Description of the project or program: In a performance-based planning and programming 

process, project identification begins with determining the need for the project based on crash 

frequency and severity, pavement condition, bridge condition, conformance with current 

geometric standards, security, issues associated with demand for moving people and goods, 

resiliency, and other adopted Corpus Christi MPO goals and objectives. The evaluation of need is 

based on measured current and forecast future conditions, not on an assumption that prior 

decisions are still valid. Providing analyses and/or data to support problems or unsatisfactory 

conditions identified in the need sentence is required. Project descriptions will be detailed 

enough to be understandable to the general public with regard to scope of the project, its 

location, schedule and costs. It will also provide enough detail to allow forecast and evaluation of 

the relative performance-based merits of the various projects against each other.  

• Cost: The preparation of a project cost estimate is a constantly evolving process that begins prior 

to programming and continues throughout the lifecycle of the project. Funding needs for a 

project includes the construction cost estimate, both the preliminary and final design plans, the 

environmental analysis, mitigation activities, and a separate right of way (ROW) cost estimate. 

The estimate will utilize the description that is used for evaluation purposes.  

• Funding sources: Twelve specific purpose categories of funds have been established by federal 

and state legislation and commission policy for highway transportation programs (See Section G 

above). Funding categories have formally established target LET dates and are either allocated 

state or district-wide programs or project specific.  

• Schedule:  The schedule shown in the TIP should include the year that each phase will begin, with 

detail realistic enough to provide reasonable assurance that projects will achieve federally 

required funding milestones, including completion of expenditures within four years of funding 

obligation.  



 

Corpus Christi MPO Category 9 Call for Projects Page 18 

• RPIC: Prior to beginning work, the local government and TxDOT will each designate a “responsible 

person in charge” (RPIC) for the project. The local government is also required to assign a 

“qualified person” to the project.  

• Minute Order: Obtain from the Texas Transportation Commission approval of minute orders as 

appropriate. A minute order is a formal expression of direction or intent approved by the Texas 

Transportation Commission to authorize actions by TxDOT.   

2. Advance Funding Agreement:  An Advance Funding Agreement (AFA) is a contract under which 

TxDOT and the local government allocate participation in a transportation improvement project. The 

AFA defines the scope of work, labor and material resources, and cash funding responsibilities to be 

contributed by each party that are necessary to accomplish a transportation project. These 

agreements are used when local entities participate in funding projects or programs. The local 

government funding may be directed toward preliminary engineering, construction, right of way, 

utility relocation costs, maintenance or as a match for federal funds for any other project expense.   

The executed AFA will state the party responsible to perform each project development activity and 

the funding obligations of each party to the agreement. TxDOT is required to determine if the local 

government is qualified and has adequate resources and controls to perform the desired project work 

elements prior to the department's authorizing the entity to perform the project work. This is 

accomplished through the Local Government Risk Assessment process. Standard templates for 

Voluntary AFAs and AFAs are available from the standard contracts webpage on the Contract Services 

Division Crossroads website. This process can take 12-18 months. This timeframe should be considered 

during programming of project funds.    

If there is a significant change in the scope of work, funding or schedule, the district will prepare an 

AFA amendment that sets forth the change and the reason for the change. An amendment to the AFA 

will frequently trigger a change order in the related bid documents or scope of services. Any change in 

the scope of the project must be consistent with TxDOT’s change order policy. If the proposed change 

is outside of the change order policy, the district must coordinate with TxDOT’s Design Division to get 

a new minute order from the Transportation Commission to authorize the new project.   

After a contract (AFA) is executed between the local entity and TxDOT, the local entity must request 

and obtain authorization to proceed with the project work. This authorization is a State Letter of 

Authority (SLOA). The SLOA must be issued on all projects whether the work is done by the local entity 

or contractors. For non-construction projects, a single SLOA is required prior to initiation of work on 

the project. For transportation projects that include construction up to three SLOAs may be required 

during the course of the overall project. The first SLOA is required prior to the Preliminary Engineering 

phase, the second SLOA is required prior to the acquisition of right of way or the accommodation of 

utilities and the third is required prior to initiation of advertising for construction.  

 

In addition to the SLOA, a Federal Project Authorization and Agreement (FPAA) is required for both 

non-construction and construction projects that use federal funds. Upon completion of the FPAA form, 

the use of federal funds is authorized between FHWA and TxDOT for reimbursement of the approved 

costs. 

3. Environmental Compliance: The impacts of a project or program upon the social, economic, and 

environmental conditions of a region are considered during the earliest stages of planning and 

development for any federally funded project. In many projects, the Environmental Compliance 



 

Corpus Christi MPO Category 9 Call for Projects Page 19 

phase is performed concurrently with the preliminary design (30 percent design). The Environmental 

Compliance phase must be completed prior to right-of-way acquisition or utility accommodation.   

During development of an MTP the combined impacts of all funded projects are estimated, and 

appropriate mitigation is identified. The three major categories of environmental study are: Class I - 

environmental impact statement (EIS) is very detailed and is used when the project is expected to have 

significant impacts on the human or natural environment. Class II – Categorically Excluded (CE). Projects 

which do not have cumulative or significant effects. Class III – Environmental Assessment (EA). Projects 

in this category are not Class I or Class II. Costs for this activity vary considerably, with four percent 

(4%) of initial construction cost often used as a starting point. 

4. Preliminary Engineering and 30% Design: During this step, project sponsors work with TxDOT and 

partner entities to define the project location, develop concepts to satisfy the project need, and 

agree on parameters (such as horizontal curve radii and super elevation, grades and stopping sight 

distances) for the final design. Parameters for the design may be established if they don’t affect 

objective consideration of alternatives in the NEPA review process or cause adverse environmental 

impacts. Preliminary design must include an identification of the environmental issues and 

commitments that must be considered during the project development.   

The Design Summary Report (DSR) contains the record of project development and design and 

constitutes an understanding of basic features of the project by FHWA, TxDOT divisions, TxDOT district 

office, and local government agencies. Costs for this activity generally five percent (5%) of initially 

estimated project construction costs. This activity generally takes 18 months, which should be 

considered during programming and reprogramming of project funds.   

5. Right-of-Way and Utilities: Determine existing Right-of-Way (ROW) limits, ownership of the 

properties that abut ROW, and ownership of any properties that may be temporarily or permanently 

acquired. It also includes identification of owners of any utilities that are in the existing ROW or on 

the proposed ROW. Above ground utility information may be obtained by standard land surveying 

methods. Underground utility locations may be determined by conventional survey methods, newer 

technologies, or by Subsurface Utility Engineering (SUE). During a Preliminary Design Concept 

Conference, proposed project limits, impacts, and physical and financial constraints are studied. 

Preliminary ROW data is used to adjust alignments and minimize ROW impacts to properties. 

Acquisition of ROW requires a separate cost estimate, which should be noted in the TIP and STIP. The 

schedule for ROW acquisition can greatly delay a project and should be considered during 

programming / reprogramming of project construction funds.   

6. Final (100%) Plans, Specifications, and Estimate Development (PS&E): The Design Concept 

Conference (DCC) is the beginning of PS&E preparation and occurs after most of the background data 

is gathered. The DCC finalizes fundamental aspects, concepts, and design criteria of the project. The 

Design Summary Report (DSR) developed during Preliminary Engineering is updated as these 

activities are performed. The DSR is the auditable record of project development and is stored in the 

project File of Record. Make a site visit to inspect existing conditions pertinent to sequence of 

construction. Outcomes include determining the need for construction speed zoning and traffic 

control requirements at intersections, prepare preliminary staging plans using typical sections with 

plan views showing complex areas, and developing detours and road closures plan to ensure safe, 

continuous operation for motorcyclists, pedestrians and bicyclists, along with work zone safety for 

the traveling public, department employees, and contractor’s employees. It may also be necessary to 

determine time of day limitations for construction activities to avoid impacts to traffic and adjacent 

properties. Costs for this activity are generally five percent (5%) of initially estimated project 



 

Corpus Christi MPO Category 9 Call for Projects Page 20 

construction costs. This activity generally takes 18 months, which should be considered during 

programming and reprogramming of project funds.   

7. Letting and Award: Letting is the process to award a contract, for the erection of public works, to one 

of several bidders. Bids to construct projects are forwarded to the Transportation Commission for 

approval and the approved contract is awarded (let) to the lowest responsive bid submitted by a 

qualified bidder. On an annual basis, the Letting Management Section of the Financial Management 

Division (FIN) requires districts establish the three-year letting schedule. The one-year letting 

schedule is a planning document and is subject to change, typically advancing or delaying projects 

from the following 2 years. Letting schedules are posted on the Internet. 

8. Construction: Highway construction means construction activities carried out in relation to a 

highway. This includes the act of locating, supervising and mapping of an area for a highway. The 

construction of highways is usually done by state or local communities. The construction of highways 

will conform to federal or the state laws. Construction plans are the drawings approved by the 

engineer, or true reproductions thereof, which show the location, character, dimensions, and details 

of the work and which are a part of the contract.  

9. Proposed Closeout and Maintenance: Upon completion of the project, the department prepares a 

Statement of Cost to document actual project costs incurred by the department. If any additional 

funds are owed by the local government, Financial Management Division sends an invoice to the local 

government. Any overpayment by the local government, after all cost and claims are paid, is returned 

Project. 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

  



 

Corpus Christi MPO Category 9 Call for Projects Page 21 

Appendix A: Other Regulatory Requirements  

 

There are a number of State and Federal regulatory requirements that apply to this program. Most, if not 

all, of these requirements (competitive bidding, minority business participation, Davis Bacon Act, 

prevailing wage rates and Americans with Disabilities Act) can be unfamiliar to project sponsors. In most  

cases, for compliance with environmental regulations during preliminary engineering, it is expected that 

project sponsors will secure professional assistance familiar with TxDOT policies and procedures 

(consulting engineers, landscape architects) to assist them in satisfying these requirements and advancing 

their project. TxDOT District staff should be contacted to assist with the interpretation and application of 

these requirements. In addition, sponsors should reference TxDOT Publication 740: Local Project  

Delivery Manual.  

 A list of some of these requirements, as well as a brief discussion of each, follows.   

Agreements  and Eligible Costs   

The project sponsor must execute a standard legal agreement with TxDOT prior to proceeding with any 

work on the project. Any project costs incurred prior to the execution of a reimbursement agreement 

for which federal dollars are requested will not be eligible for reimbursement. TxDOT will provide 

guidance, if requested. Interest payments made by municipalities or other project sponsors to finance 

any portion of the project costs are not reimbursable.  

Proprietary Items   

The project specifications must list “three manufacturers” or “approved equal” or a generic 

specification. If a proprietary item is required, an approval letter from TxDOT TPP will need to be 

obtained. A sample request letter can be provided if required by any sponsor. All items must also be 

Bulletin 15 approved or a waiver will be required.  

Budget   

The sponsor must demonstrate that there is an acceptable funding strategy for the project. A well-

defined scope of work is needed to develop an accurate budget.  Budget considerations are very 

important and an itemized list of anticipated expenses (including labor, supplies, materials and other 

anticipated costs) should be provided in an application attachment. The budget must be prepared and 

should be divided into project development phases that include environmental clearance, right‐of‐way, 

and construction phases. The budget should identify all sources of funding and how each itemized 

activity will be funded. Estimated funding for the project that may be from sources other than Category 

9 should be identified, such as other federal funds (not the US DOT), state, local, donated services, in‐

kind services, volunteer, etc. Even though the preliminary engineering and right‐of‐way are not funded 

by Category 9 funds, a complete budget is needed to ensure that the applicant can fund the required 

project phases.  

 

Speaking with TxDOT Engineering District staff and other professionals familiar with TxDOT policies and 

regulations – such as architects, designers, engineers, contractors or other appropriate individuals that 
have TxDOT project experience – is highly recommended.  



 

Corpus Christi MPO Category 9 Call for Projects Page 22 

The budget section of the application must be completed and divided into project development phases 

that include preliminary engineering, final design, right‐of‐way, utilities and construction phases. The 

budget should identify all sources of funding and how each itemized activity will be funded.   

 Pre‐Construction Costs  

The project sponsor is responsible for funding pre‐construction activities; they are not eligible for 
STBG-SA funds. Funding for pre‐construction phases may come from any combination of federal, state, 

local, or private funds. The sponsor should also list any donated, in‐kind, and volunteer services, 
including those from the Youth Conservation Corps. Even though the preconstruction activities are not 

funded by program funds, a complete budget is needed to ensure that the sponsor can fund the 

required project phases. Development of the pre‐construction phase will be expected to be consistent 
with the TxDOT Connects process.  

 

Project Construction Cost Estimate – Bid Items  

For the construction phase, the project sponsor must develop and attach to the project application a 

construction cost estimate that includes the following:  

• Control-Section-Job (CSJ) Item numbers (optional) 

• Bid Item Description/Name 

• Quantity 

• Unit of Measure 

• Unit Price 

• Item Total Cost 

Project Construction Cost Estimate –  Inflationary and Other Costs  

Construction Inspection Costs  
Construction inspection costs must be included in the total construction costs. For projects under $1 

million in total construction costs, up to 15% of the construction costs is allowed for project inspection. 
If a project has a construction cost of over $1 million, up to 12% of the construction costs is allowed for 

the inspection cost.   

Contingency Costs  
Project sponsors may add up to 10% to the cost of the construction phase of the project (not the 

inspection phase) to account for unforeseen expenses.   

Inflationary Costs  
Project sponsors must design their project cost estimates for the year in which the project is 

anticipated to be constructed, not the year that the application is submitted. Most projects selected in 

this application round will go to construction in calendar year 2024 or later, depending on the 

complexity of the project and the degree to which the sponsor has advanced project design.  For the 

purposes of cost estimating, it is recommended that project sponsors consider inflationary costs. An 

inflation rate of 3% per year is acceptable. Project sponsors should create project cost estimates that 
assume construction in 2024 or later.  

Please enter the federal funds requested for the project. The following costs may be added to the total 

construction cost:   



 

Corpus Christi MPO Category 9 Call for Projects Page 23 

• Up to four years of inflation at 4% per year 

• Contingency costs may be included, but may not exceed 10% 

• Construction Inspection (15% for projects < $1 million, 12% for project ≥ $1 million) 
 

Based on the project, and in consultation with the consultant and TxDOT District, the estimate may also 

need to contain allowances for the items below:  

• Administration/Department Costs 

• Maintenance and Protection of Traffic 

• Erosion and Sedimentation Control 

• Inspector’s Field Office, Equipment Package, and Microcomputer 

• Mobilization 

• Stormwater 

• Drainage 

• Pre‐Construction Schedule 

• Construction Surveying 

• Internal Facilitation 

It is also important to note that TxDOT pre‐qualified contractors will be required, and that Davis Bacon 

wage rates will apply. These factors will increase project costs above that of a typical municipally 

funded project.     

Cost Estimating Resources  

In addition to working with the consultant and TxDOT District personnel, please reference TxDOT  

Pub 352 ‐ Estimating Manual which will provide more detailed information.  

As sponsors develop their estimated budget, they should talk with TxDOT Engineering District staff and 

other professionals familiar with TxDOT policies and regulations, such as architects, designers, 

engineers, contractors or other appropriate individuals that have TxDOT project experience.  

Important: Project sponsors should design their project cost estimates for the year in which the project 

is anticipated to be delivered. Note also that 15% of the estimated construction cost is used for project 

inspection. The 15% must be included in the Total Construction Costs.   In addition, project sponsors 

should factor in “Commonwealth incurred costs” at approximately 2% of the total construction cost.  

 

Reimbursement  

The STBG-SA is a federal cost reimbursement program and no money is provided upfront. No 

reimbursement will be provided for costs incurred before a Minute Order is authorized; this does not 

occur automatically once a project is awarded.   

Form D‐4232 (commonly referred to as simply “4232”) is the mechanism by which the Federal  

Highway Administration (FHWA) authorizes spending of the federal funds and establishes the date of 

eligibility for funding project activities. TxDOT staff will prepare the necessary financial documents to 

secure the federal authorization of funding. However, this does not mean that FHWA is obligated to 

reimburse the sponsor if it is found that the federal laws or regulations were not followed. In this event, 

the project sponsor will be left to fund the project at 100 percent.   



 

Corpus Christi MPO Category 9 Call for Projects Page 24 

In order to receive reimbursement for approved STBG-SA project expenses, the sponsor will need to 

become a registered business partner in the Electronic Construction Management System (further 

explained below) and become a vendor in the SAP system.  

 

Project Invoicing and Payments to Contractors   

Once a project is authorized to advance and begins to incur costs, the project sponsor will receive 

periodic invoices from the contractor. The project sponsor then reviews and – if they concur with the 

reported expenses – approves the invoices and submits them to TxDOT. TxDOT processes the payment 

and provides the approved funds to the sponsor. Upon receipt of payment from TxDOT, the sponsor has 

up to ten days to pay the contractor. By using this process, the project sponsor does not typically have 

to use their own funds. The sponsor will only be reimbursed for actual approved project expenses, up 

to the amount approved for the project.   

 

Public Involvement  

Early and continued public involvement in program activities will need to be sought to ensure 

consistency with the requirements for public involvement in the metropolitan and statewide planning 

regulations and with the National Environmental Policy Act (NEPA) project implementation guidelines. 

The applicant should contact their local transportation planning agency (MPO or RPO) for more 

information. Generally, the public involvement activities handled through the application review and 

approval process by the MPO and RPO fulfills this requirement. However, the project sponsor should 

discuss their project locally in a public format, for example  at local planning commission and/or 

municipal meetings.   

  

Environmental Clearance   
  

All projects will require an environmental clearance document as part of the preliminary engineering 

phase of work. The level of effort varies by the type of project, the anticipated impact and the degree 

of public controversy. The NEPA documentation may be a Categorical Exclusion (CE), Environmental 

Assessment (EA), or Environmental Impact Statement (EIS). Except in unusual circumstances, most TA 

projects are usually processed as a CE under the NEPA. Preparation of the document can be a 

cooperative venture: Normally, at the project scoping, a decision will be made on the type of 

documentation required and which entity will prepare the document. The project sponsor or their 

consultant will be required to prepare the environmental clearance document.  

  

There may be costs associated with obtaining environmental clearance. These costs, like all 

preconstruction expenses, must be borne by the project sponsor. Please discuss this with your TxDOT 

Engineering District TA Program Coordinator PRIOR to submitting an application. District TA 

Coordinators are listed in Appendix C.   

 

Consultant Selection, Project Design, and Inspection   
  

Projects must follow standard federal/state procedures for all phases of work. Project sponsors should 

acquire the services of a qualified consultant to oversee the development and implementation of the 

project (including project inspection) and ensure compliance with all state and federal requirements. 



 

Corpus Christi MPO Category 9 Call for Projects Page 25 

This professional is typically an engineer, although an architect or landscape architect may be 

appropriate, depending upon the nature and scope of the project. It is important to recognize that the 

project sponsor, not TxDOT, employs the design and/or construction professionals at their own expense.   

It is highly recommended that the selected consultant has experience with TxDOT specifications and has 

demonstrated experience in the successful delivery of Transportation Enhancement (TE), SRTS, , or TA 

projects. Please consult the TxDOT Publication 740: Local Project Delivery Manual for qualifications of a 

TxDOT experienced consultant.  Expeditious, accurate design lessens the chance that the project will 

not meet the two-year deadline for STBG-SA projects to advertise. Projects that are not advertised 

within two years are subject to cancellation.   

  

Treatment of Projects   
  

Projects funded through the STBG-SA Program must conform to 23 U.S.C. 133(i):   

  

(c) Treatment of Projects. — Notwithstanding any other provision of law, projects funded under this 
section (excluding those carried out under subsection (h)(5)) shall be treated as projects on a Federal‐aid 
highway under this chapter.   
  

The “treatment of projects” requirement (23 U.S.C. 133(i)) means that all projects carried out using 

STBG-SA funds (except for recreational trails projects carried out under the RTP set‐aside) must comply 

with applicable provisions in Title 23, such as project agreements, authorization to proceed prior to 

incurring costs, prevailing wage rates (Davis‐Bacon), Buy America, competitive bidding, and other 

contracting requirements, regardless of whether the projects are located within the right‐of‐way of a 

Federal‐aid highway.  

Design and Implementation Requirements  

The design requirements for STBG-SA projects are defined in TxDOT Pub 10 (Design Manual 1):  

Specifically, Chapters 6 and 7 address key design requirements, including NEPA requirements, 

preliminary and final design processes, and key procedures for obtaining right of way and utility 

clearances. These steps, requirements and standards must be followed by the sponsor’s project designer 

for the project to be funded through the STBG-SA.  

Right‐of‐Way Clearance   

All right‐of‐way acquisition must follow federal regulations, including the Uniform Act (Uniform 

Relocation Assistance and Real Property Acquisition Policies of 1970). In particular, property owners 

must be advised that federal funding is being used to implement the project, and they are entitled to 

fair market value for their property. The property owner has the right to be informed of this value, as 

determined by a qualified appraiser. In addition, if the sponsor does not have the authority to acquire 

property by eminent domain, the property owner must be so advised prior to any offer being made. 

This requirement does not preclude the voluntary donation of property to the project. Federal funds 

are not available for land that is already within the public domain, e.g., owned by a municipality; 

however, such land may be donated to the project as part of the sponsor’s investment. Right‐of‐way 

certification will be required for all projects prior to advertising for construction bids.   

NOTES:   



 

Corpus Christi MPO Category 9 Call for Projects Page 26 

• The requirements of the Uniform Act apply to any acquisitions associated with approved STBG-SA 

projects, regardless of whether federal funds are used for the purchase or not. Please contact your 

TxDOT Engineering District Right‐of‐Way Administrator if you have any questions or need specific 

guidance. 

• Only projects for conversion of abandoned railway corridors and scenic overlooks are eligible to use 

program funds for right‐of‐way acquisition. See the Project Funding section of this document for more 

details on acquisition only projects. 

• More information is available in Chapter 5, Right of Way Phase, of the Local Project Delivery Manual. 

 

Utility Clearance   

All projects must have a utility clearance form (TxDOT Form D‐419) processed prior to the advertisement 

for bids. This procedure requires that the sponsor certify that all necessary arrangements have been 

completed for the relocation of any affected utility. TxDOT personnel will provide assistance with this 

process.  

 

Permits   

It will be the responsibility of the project sponsor to secure all necessary permits to design and 

implement the project. These may involve permits from the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers, as well as 

County and Municipal permits. The assigned TxDOT District Project Manager and/or hired consultant 

will be familiar with the permits required for each project and can provide guidance, as necessary.  

Utility Involvement    

Certain projects may require the involvement of utility companies. It will be the responsibility of the 
project sponsor to contact the Public Utility to secure the necessary actions by that agency.  
 

Railroad Coordination  

If your project involves a bridge over a railroad, a bridge that carries a railroad, a railroad grade crossing 

or would require acquisition or an easement on railroad property, you will need to involve the owner of 

the rail line early. This initial contact, which may be facilitated by your TxDOT District Project Manager 

in consultation with your District's Grade Crossing Engineer/Administrator, should define the proposed 

project scope and timeframe.   

   

Projects involving railroads are likely to involve additional expenses (including direct costs to the railroad 

for design and plan reviews). Additionally, railroad coordination often leads to delays or project 

cancellation. As such, if possible, it is recommended that reasonable options to avoid impacting the 

railroad be explored.   

 

Projects Involving Lighting   

For any project that includes lighting, a lighting plan will be required, which may add time and cost to 

your project. For more information, reference Chapter 4.9, Section H of the TxDOT Design Manual Part 

1C.   

For guidance specific to STBG-SA projects, please reference “TxDOT Highway Lighting  



 

Corpus Christi MPO Category 9 Call for Projects Page 27 

Requirements and Design Approval for TA Set‐Aside Projects” document. Your TxDOT District STBG-SA 

Program Coordinator will also be familiar with these requirements.  

 

Bidding   

For projects that require a contractor to perform physical construction or rehabilitation, the sponsor’s 

professional will assemble the contract proposal package. TxDOT’s Engineering District Office will review 

the Plans, Specifications, and Estimate (PS&E) package. The project sponsor or TxDOT will manage the 

bidding as agreed upon at the project kickoff meeting.  

 

Bid Savings and Bid Overages   

Each selected project has been approved for a specific scope of work and funding level, based on the 

information submitted by the project sponsor and approved by the Corpus Christi MPO Transportation 

Technical Committee. While each project is awarded a set amount, it is important to understand that 

TxDOT’s focus is to deliver awarded projects; the funding provided is not an absolute award to the 

project sponsor. It should not be assumed that additional work can be performed if bids come in lower 

than the awarded amount.   

 

Once bid, if the lowest bid falls below the project award amount, TxDOT captures the bid savings and 

returns them to the Corpus Christi MPOSTBG-SA / Line Item. Again, delivery of the awarded project, not 

the dollar amount is key.   

 

When bids exceed the design estimate, the sponsor will be asked to contribute toward the bid overage.  

 

Construction   

Project sponsor’s contractor may proceed with the construction phase of the project only upon receipt 

of the project sponsor’s written authorization (notice to proceed), which ensures that all necessary 

approvals have been secured. TxDOT Pub 740 requires a mandatory 12 weeks built into the pre‐bid 

construction schedule between the let date and the issuance of the notice to proceed.  

 

An approved contractor must perform construction. All material used in conjunction with the project 

must meet project specifications and special provisions included in the PS&E package.   

 

NOTE: 15% of the estimated construction cost is used for project inspection. The 15% must be included 

in the Total Construction Costs.  

 

Cost Increases / Changes in Scope of Work  

Each programmed project has been approved for a specific scope of work and funding level based on 

the information submitted by the project sponsor. When preparing a project scope and cost estimate, 

all project materials and labor costs should reflect the anticipated year of construction. It should not be 

assumed that cost increases can be covered with state or federal funds. There may be cases where the 

sponsor must bear any unforeseen project cost increases. It should be noted that the project in which 

funding is awarded is the project that must be constructed. If the project that is awarded funding cannot 



 

Corpus Christi MPO Category 9 Call for Projects Page 28 

proceed, the funding will return to the Corpus Christi MPO TA line item in the TIP and will be reallocated 

to another regional project that has been competitively selected.   

 

Maintenance  

The project sponsor will be responsible for all costs associated with the maintenance and operation of 

the project after construction. No STBG-SA funding will be provided for ongoing maintenance and 

operations costs. Failure by the sponsor to fulfill its maintenance responsibilities may result in the loss 

of future state and federal funds for private sponsors and the withholding of liquid fuels funds for 

municipal sponsors. The sponsor may transfer project maintenance and operation to another party with 

concurrence from the Department. For more information, please see the Maintenance section excerpt 

from the STBG-SA Program Reimbursement Agreement.   

The sponsor may charge a fee to access a facility constructed with STBG-SA funds only if the proceeds 

from the fee are not excessive to the general public and, by agreement, are instituted for the 

maintenance and operation of the STBG-SA funded resource. Generally, this fee applies only to historic 

transportation facilities and, in some unique circumstances, trails.   

The sponsor must establish a formalized inspection and maintenance program, to be performed by its 

own or contract personnel, to ensure an acceptable level of physical integrity and operation consistent 

with the original design standards. This maintenance program, established in accordance with standards 

determined to be acceptable to TxDOT, must include, but is not limited to:   

• Periodic inspections 

• Appropriate preventive maintenance (i.e., cleaning, lubricating, refurbishing electrical 

equipment, etc.) 

• A systematic record‐keeping system 

• The means to handle notification and implementation of emergency repairs 

Failure by the project sponsor to fulfill its maintenance responsibilities may result in the loss of future 

state and federal funds.  

 

Project Reporting and Cancellation    

A project sponsor may, at any time in the project development process, decide to cancel the project and 

drop out of the program. The project sponsor will be responsible for the reimbursement of all federal 

funds received as of that date, as well as for TxDOT staff costs incurred as a part of the project. The 

sponsor will also be responsible for payment of all outstanding invoices to all project contractors.  

At a project kickoff meeting, a joint staff of Corpus Christi MPO and TxDOT Engineering District choose 

the timeframe and the specific milestones to be evaluated. Examples include reimbursement 

agreements, plans approved, etc. Project sponsors will be required to submit quarterly progress reports 

to Corpus Christi MPO, detailing steps underway or completed to reach the specific milestones.   

One year after the kickoff meeting, a project review will be undertaken by joint staff to determine if 

significant progress has been reached toward the established milestones.   

During the review, if it is determined that insufficient progress has been made; the applicant will be 

warned in writing that more time (joint staff decision) will be allowed. If no progress occurs, the project 



 

Corpus Christi MPO Category 9 Call for Projects Page 29 

may be removed from the program. When a decision to warn the applicant is reached Corpus Christi 

MPO will notify the applicant (via written letter) within 30 days of such a decision. The applicant must 

respond in writing within 30 days. Milestone dates for estimated project completion will be included in 

the application. If the project has to be cancelled due to lack of progress or other unforeseen 

circumstances, the project sponsor will be notified by Corpus Christi MPO (via written letter) that the 

project funding is no longer available and the project has been cancelled.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

  



 

Corpus Christi MPO Category 9 Call for Projects Page 30 

Appendix B: Multi-criteria Scoring Process  

 

Multi-Criteria Analysis (MCA) is a scoring tool to assist with decision-making. It was developed for 

complex problems that include both qualitative and quantitative information in a performance-based 

evaluation process. MCA is useful for obtaining input from both experts and stakeholders. These inputs 

are synthesized to arrive at a collective choice for the selection and use of a weighted set of criteria, 

based upon known objectives and indicators.   

 

In many situations, the ability to communicate and document how the decisions were reached is as 

important as the decisions themselves. MCA’s ability to separate the decision elements and depict the 

decision-making process makes it ideally suited to transparently communicate the basis of each decision. 

Specific strengths of MCA in transportation project assessment are:  

• Facilitate understanding by each individual/participant of the importance of each objective and 
indicator to their interests. 

• Assess the relative importance of individual objectives and indicators in order to select a set 
deemed most significant to the group. 

• Aggregate all the objective and indicator evaluations to arrive at a group decision.  
 

The following definitions are useful in understanding the elements of MCA:   

• Goals (Principles): The stated end toward which effort is directed; an embodiment of a value. 
Goals provide the primary framework for justification of objectives and indicators.    

• Criterion: A specific target that can achieve a goal. These are standards that an improvement is 
judged by without itself being a direct measure of performance.    

• Indicator: An indicator is any variable or component used to measure the status of a particular 
objective.     

 

Why is MCA needed as a decision-making tool?    

In transportation planning and programming, multiple criteria are used to evaluate the performance of 

projects and prioritize investing of resources. Confusion and suspicion can arise if a logical and well-

structured decision-making process is not followed. Given the complexity of the transportation decision-

making process, an impartial decision cannot be met by using ad hoc procedures. Some of the dangers 

associated with less rigorous procedures are:  

• Heightened risk or probability of generating an inappropriate decision. 

• Exacerbating undesirable decisions because there is no record to explain the rationale or logic 
behind them.  

• A lack of transparency of the decision-making process, which could hinder the adoption of the 
program or result in failure to gain public acceptance of the plan. 

• Difficulty in reaching a general consensus in a multi-interest group. 
 

Multiple Criteria Analysis is an appropriate tool for addressing the challenges involved in transportation 

project assessment because:  

1. It clarifies the relative importance of each stated objective and reflects this importance in the 
final decision-making process.   

2. It has the capability to accommodate multiple types of criteria in a single process.  



 

Corpus Christi MPO Category 9 Call for Projects Page 31 

3. It can work with mixed levels of detailed data or the absence of hard data allowing for the 
incorporation of both qualitative and quantitative information.  

4. It allows the direct involvement of multiple experts, interest groups, and stakeholders.  
5. Analysis is transparent to participants.  
6. It includes mechanisms for feedback concerning the consistency of the judgments made.  
7. The participants don't have to agree on the relative importance of the objectives or the rankings 

of the alternatives. Each member enters his or her own judgements and makes a distinct, 
identifiable contribution to a jointly reached conclusion.  

 

The steps in Multi-Criteria Analysis 

1. Establish goals and criterion.  
2. Examine and modify if necessary.  

3. Participants do a pair-wise comparison for each goal.  

4. Participants give individual ratings and rankings for each criterion for every goal if more than one 
criterion is used.  

5. Based on the results obtained from steps 3 and 4, the facilitator prioritizes the goals and 
objectives according to their relative weights.  

6. Develop and rate the indicators under each objective.  

7. Calculate the relative weights of each indicator within each objective. Prioritize the indicators 
according to their relative weights.  

8. Show the final list to the team. If the team is satisfied, the final list of goals, objectives, and 
indicators is codified. If the team is not satisfied, then the process can be repeated from Step 2.    

9. Each participant then scores each indicator based on its performance and multiplies that by its 
relative weight.  

10. A project’s final score for each objective is calculated by summing the weighted scores given to all 
its indicators by the participants. These weighted scores are calculated by multiplying the relative 
weights of each indicator with the scores assigned to each indicator. By completing these two 
steps, a score is reached that reflects the relative importance of each indicator in relation to the 
objective it helps measure. 

11. Repeat this process for objectives scoring into goals for multiple groups.   

 

Rating and Ranking Analysis 

Ranking 

Ranking assigns each goal area a ‘rank’ depending on its perceived importance by each participant. Each 

decision element is assigned a rank that reflects its perceived degree of importance within the decision 

process. The decision elements are ordered according to how each person ranked them, based on the 

pairwise comparison. The process to completing this task is as follows: 

  



 

Corpus Christi MPO Category 9 Call for Projects Page 32 

 

 

Pairwise Comparison Worksheet  

For each item: in each box, circle the goal 

area that you deem the most important 

between the two items.  Once you have 

circled one item in each box, count how 

many times each goal area was circled. 

Please write this number at the bottom of 

the worksheet for each goal. The total 

should be ___ and the largest number 

should be _____. If you have any ties, then 

find that (or those) pairwise comparison in 

the boxes above to see which you thought 

was more important. i.e. both safety and 

congestion had 10 circles, but in the box 

where safety was compared against 

congestion you had circled congestion. 

Please put a plus next to congestion so it is 

now 10+.   

 

Rating 

Rating is similar to ranking, where each participant is asked to give each decision element a rating, or 

percentage score, between 0 and 100. The scores for all the elements being compared must add up to 

100. Thus, to score one element high means that a different element must be scored lower.  IMPORTANT: 

The total of the rating column must be exactly 100. I suggest starting with the least important item and 

giving it a low point total (1 to 3) (no zeroes allowed) and then working up from there. Remember, the 

ranking order must be followed and the point total equal to 100. We will send out a spreadsheet to aid 

this endeavor. If one criterion is twice as important as another it should receive twice as many points. In 

the example below for Person 2, Safety is twice as important as Congestion and Congestion was twice as 

important as Efficiency, making Safety 4 times more important than Efficiency. Whereas for Person 1, 

they felt Maintenance and Safety were about the same, with Safety being slightly more important. 

 

An example of a participant’s chart for one goal and two objectives is below. The shaded area is filled in 

after the entire group scores are determined.  

 

Reduce 

Congestion 

Person 1 

Ranking 

Person 1 

Rating 

Person 2 

Ranking 

Person 2 

Rating Etc. 

Congestion 4 35 2 20  

Maintenance  2 24 3 30  

Safety 2+ 26 4 40  

 Efficiency 1 15 1 10  

 

The Corpus Christi MPO staff will compile and computer the relative weights and priorities for the group. 

An example of this is below.  



 

Corpus Christi MPO Category 9 Call for Projects Page 33 

 

 Participant 1 Participant 2 Participant 3 

Reduce 

Congestion 

Ranking 

Points 

Rating 

Points 

Ranking 

Points 

Rating 

Points 

Ranking 

Points 

Rating 

Points 

Congestion 4 35 2 15 2 20 

Maintenance  2 24 4 40 4 40 

Safety 2+ 26 3 35 3 25 

Efficiency 1 15 1 10 1 15 

 

 

 

Reduce 

Congestion 

Participant 1 

Rating 

Participant 2 

Rating 

Participant 3 

Rating 

Total 

Points 

Final 

Weighting 

Congestion 35 15 20 70/3 23.33 

Maintenance  24 40 40 104/3 34.67 

Safety 26 35 25 86/3 28.67 

Efficiency 15 10 15 40/3 13.33 

 100 100 100 300 100 

 

Scoring 

After the weight of each indicator is determined, that indicator is then scored on a 5 point scale. If a 

qualitative system is used then scorers should agree to the same basic scoring structure for each qualitative 

category. If the scores by the participants are more than 3 points apart, then a discussion by the group of 

scorers about scores for this individual indicator will take place. The scores do not need to be changed, but 

the reasoning for a score should be explored to determine the variance.  

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

New Task Force To Direct Funding To Vital Highway Safety Projects 
Contact: Media Relations        Phone: (512) 463-8700      Date: Aug. 31, 2021 

AUSTIN – The Texas Transportation Commission today announced a new task force to be comprised of 
representatives from the Texas Department of Transportation and the state’s metropolitan planning 
organizations (MPOs) to further identify and fund safety projects from funding allocated to MPOs throughout 
the state with a relentless focus on reducing the number of fatalities on Texas highways. 

In 2019, the Commission directed TxDOT to work toward a goal of reducing the number of deaths on Texas 
roadways by half by the year 2035 and to zero by the year 2050. To achieve “The Road To Zero” goal, 
Commission Chairman J. Bruce Bugg, Jr. said it is essential that TxDOT work closely with its MPO partners. 

“This will allow us to work with MPOs to effectively direct unspent funding from Categories 5, 7, and 8 to critical 
safety projects that will improve our roadways and ultimately help reduce the number of deadly crashes,” Bugg 
said. “We know this goal is achievable and this new task force is yet another key component to getting there.” 

The TxDOT/MPO Safety Task Force will be co-chaired by commissioners Laura Ryan and Alvin New and will 
include representatives from across TxDOT and each of the state’s MPOs. 

“There is not a moment to waste to ramp up our collective efforts and do all that we can to save lives,” said 
Commissioner Laura Ryan. “The trend in roadway fatalities is going in the wrong direction, and not a single 
death is acceptable. These numbers represent real people and real losses. We must do more, and it takes all 
of us working together.” 

“Safety is always the top priority in meeting TxDOT’s mission of Connecting You With Texas,” said 
Commissioner Alvin New. “We take this responsibility to heart, and look forward to working very closely with 
the MPOs to strategically and thoughtfully find, evaluate, fund and measure solutions to help reach our goal of 
zero fatalities, with particular focus on progressing toward our mid-term goal of reducing deaths by half by the 
year 2035.”  

The TxDOT/MPO Safety Task Force will have an initial two-year term. It will develop a short-term plan to 
immediately invest funding on current ongoing safety initiatives, such as rumble strips that alert drivers to slow 
down and when they are veering off the road; cable barriers that prevent vehicles from sliding into on-coming 
traffic; shoulder widenings to make room for disabled vehicles or more space to avoid a collision; four-lane 
divided roadways that help move traffic more efficiently; grade separations for uninterrupted traffic flow and 
increased safety; and other safety measures. In addition, a long-term plan will be created to identify funding 
sources, from Categories 5, 7, and 8 to establish metrics to measure effectiveness, and describe incentives for 
the partnership based on the reduction of deaths on Texas roadways. 

“Ending the streak of daily deaths on Texas roadways is a responsibility shared by every Texan,” said TxDOT 
Executive Director Marc Williams. “The TxDOT/MPO Safety Task Force will help bolster the partnership we 
have with local leaders, allowing us to better focus our efforts, our ideas and our funding on saving lives.” 

Federal law requires that an MPO be designated for each urban area with a population of 50,000 or more. 
There are 23 MPOs in Texas. Each of the MPOs receive federal funding for transportation planning. 

The TxDOT/MPO Safety Task Force will help direct available funding toward the goal of reducing the number 
of deaths on Texas roadways. It will provide regular updates to the Commission, with a final report delivered at 
the completion of its initial two-year term. 

For media inquiries, contact TxDOT Media Relations at MediaRelations@txdot.gov or (512) 463-8700. 

### 

The Texas Department of Transportation is responsible for maintaining 80,000 miles of road and for supporting 
aviation, maritime, rail, and public transportation across the state. Through collaboration and leadership, we 
deliver a safe, reliable, and integrated transportation system that enables the movement of people and 
goods.  Find out more at TxDOT.gov. "Like" us on Facebook and follow us on Twitter. 

Agenda Item 4D

mailto:MediaRelations@txdot.gov
https://www.txdot.gov/content/txdot/en.html
http://www.facebook.com/txdot
http://www.twitter.com/txdot


Texas Freight Advisory Committee

SEP ‘22AUG ‘22JUL ‘22JUN ‘22MAY ‘22APR ‘22MAR ‘22FEB ‘22JAN ‘22DEC ‘21NOV ‘21OCT ‘21SEP ‘21AUG ‘21

ACCESSING CRITICAL SUPPLY CHAINS, UNDERSTANDING 
THE TEXAS MULTIMODAL 

FREIGHT NETWORK

Freight and Economic Profiles; Supply Chain Analysis, Network 
Designation;  Trends, Disruptors & Opportunities

ASSESSING CURRENT & FUTURE FREIGHT NEEDS

Commodity Flow Forecasts and Scenarios; Needs Assessment

DEVELOPING 
STRATEGIES 

Policy, Program, and 
Project Strategies

DRAFT FINAL PLAN

SUPPLY CHAIN 
WORKING GROUP #1

Infrastructure, Trends, 
Disruptors, Opportunities

STAKEHOLDER OUTREACH

SUPPLY CHAIN 
WORKING GROUP #2

Needs and Forecasts

SUPPLY CHAIN 
WORKING GROUP #3

Strategies and 
Implementation

STAKEHOLDER 
FORUM #1

Goals, Freight Profiles, 
Freight System

STATEWIDE 

STAKEHOLDER 
SURVEY

STAKEHOLDER 
FORUM #2

Forecasts, Needs, 
Strategies 

STATEWIDE 

STAKEHOLDER 
SURVEY

TxFAC Meetings

Schedule

41

Agenda Item 5A - Attachment 1

Extracted from the Texas Freight Advisory Committee Presentation Dated August 24, 2021



Extracted from the Texas Freight Advisory Committee Presentation Dated August 24, 2021

Agenda Item 5A - Attachment 2



Extracted from the Texas Freight Advisory Committee Presentation Dated August 24, 2021

Agenda Item 5A - Attachment 2



Extracted from the Texas Freight Advisory Committee Presentation Dated August 24, 2021

Agenda Item 5A - Attachment 2


	Agenda
	Item 3: Approval of the June 17, 2021 TAC Meeting Minutes
	Item 4A: Traffic Crash Data Analysis and Regional Traffic Safety Task Force
	Item 4B: Results of the TAC Member Pair-wise Comparison of 2045 MTP Goals
	Item 4C: Program Guidance and Procedures: Surface Transportation Block Grant Set-Aside (STBG-SA) Funding 
(Category 9) Call-for-Projects
	Item 4D: TxDOT/MPO Safety Task Force
	Item 5A: Infrastructure Investment and Jobs Act (IIJA) New Requirement: State Freight Plan



